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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS And CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Good

          3  afternoon, everybody. And welcome to the:

          4  Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

          5  Concessions. This is a Subcommittee of Land Use of

          6  the New York City Council. Today's date is Monday,

          7  January 8th. I am pleased to welcome Committee

          8  members Leroy Comrie and Maria Baez, and Council

          9  Member Melissa Mark-Viverito, Manhattan and the

         10  Bronx. And we have a short agenda today, although

         11  some interest in a couple of the items from the

         12  public, so we will move expeditiously and open the

         13  hearing on the first items which are related ULURP

         14  Numbers 231 and 232, which is Land Use No. 231, St.

         15  Paul's Playground, in Manhattan Community Board 11.

         16  C060502 HUM in the district of Council Member Mark

         17  Viverito, and I'm going to ask HPD to please come to

         18  the witness table and introduce this item and give

         19  Council Member Mark-Viverito a chance to make a

         20  comment. And I also know that there is at least one

         21  person from the public wishing to testify on this

         22  item.

         23                 So, Ms. Clarke, welcome. When your

         24  settled.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank
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          2  you, and good afternoon, everyone. I'm Carol Clark,

          3  an Assistant Commissioner with HPD, the Department

          4  of Housing Preservation and Development, and I'm

          5  joined by Mae Chu, who is a planner from HPD. We're

          6  here to speak about LU 231. It's the first amendment

          7  of the upper Park Avenue Urban Renewal Plan. The

          8  plan was amended to subdivide Site 3. A portion of

          9  the site will be known as Site 3 and is designated

         10  for residential use.

         11                 The new Site 3C is designated for

         12  community facility use. The amendment was necessary

         13  to facilitate the development of St. Paul's

         14  playground, which is also before the Council today

         15  as LU 232, as you noted, Chairman Garodnick. So, LU

         16  232, known as the St. Paul's playground and located

         17  at 110-112 East 118th Street consists of the

         18  proposed disposition of one vacant City-owned lot to

         19  St. Paul's Church and the Archdiocese of New York,

         20  for the development of a playground, a proposed Land

         21  Disposition Agreement, which we have referred to as

         22  an LDA, between HPD and the Roman Catholic Church of

         23  St. Paul has been drafted to incorporate the

         24  recommendations of Manhattan Community Board 11.

         25                 Specifically the playground will be
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          2  open to the general public, one, on Saturdays from

          3  10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m., and on Sundays from 2:00

          4  p.m. to 6:00 p.m. year-round; and two, on weekdays

          5  during the school year from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.;

          6  and thirdly, on weekdays during the summer from

          7  12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.

          8                 We have had a good amount of dialogue

          9  with Council Member Viverito who has reviewed both

         10  these items, Land Use 231 and 232 and has indicated

         11  to HPD that she is in support of the passage of both

         12  of these Land Use items.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         15  much, Ms. Clark.

         16                 I'd like to invite my colleague,

         17  Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito to make a

         18  comment.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         20  you, Mr. Chair. And just very quickly, I do want to

         21  thank HPD, the Borough President's Office, and

         22  obviously the Community Board in this process. At

         23  first presentation to me from the Archdiocese, my

         24  initial reaction was not to be in support of this

         25  because it's public-owned land that I think should
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          2  be completely 100 percent for public use. In

          3  subsequent conversations with the Community Board

          4  members, with the Archdiocese, considering that the

          5  majority of the children who would benefit from this

          6  do also live in the district, and also that there

          7  are very serious community concessions that are

          8  being given, obviously that has been rethought and

          9  now there is community consensus on this matter.

         10                 At the Community Board meeting, Land

         11  Use meeting, which was held to discuss this matter,

         12  it was very clearly delineated in a commitment by

         13  the Archdiocese and HPD was made to the community,

         14  and I was very clear that I would not vote in favor

         15  unless those agreements were put forth in the LDA,

         16  which is before me, and which I thank HPD for doing.

         17                 And very specifically, I want to make

         18  sure that we do hold HPD and the Archdiocese

         19  responsible to the specific hours, because that's

         20  not delineated in the LDA that Carol Clark just read

         21  into the record. So, those hours are very important.

         22  We don't want to get into the habit of having a back

         23  and forth with the Archdiocese and having to fight

         24  with regard to those specific hours, and I think

         25  that the Borough President's advocacy on behalf of
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          2  the signage, clearly we'll also continue to validate

          3  and specify those hours further.

          4                 So, with that, I want to thank

          5  everyone for the ongoing conversations, the openness

          6  of this discussion and ensuring that the community

          7  ultimately is the one that is benefitting from this

          8  arrangement.

          9                 So, at this point I would support

         10  this land disposition agreement as specified.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Seeing no other questions, I'm going

         14  to invite Anthony Borelli, a representative of the

         15  Borough President of Manhattan Scott Stringer up to

         16  the witness table.

         17                 Mr. Borelli, when you are settled,

         18  just please introduce yourself formally for the

         19  record, and you can go right ahead.

         20                 MR. BORELLI: I am now settled. Good

         21  afternoon. My name is Anthony Borelli. I'm the

         22  Director of Land Use Planning and Development for

         23  Manhattan Borough President Scott Stringer. I am

         24  here basically to state his position on this

         25  application. He and our office, we think this is a
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          2  great project, literally it will take 300 students

          3  from the community off the streets, which is where

          4  they have to play now because they have no

          5  playground.

          6                 We think the application meets all of

          7  the requirements that are necessary for the

          8  amendment to the Urban Renewal Area Plan, as well as

          9  the designation for the UDAA and UDAAP.

         10                 As was already spoken about and

         11  commented on, our concerns were primarily about

         12  public access, we want to make sure of that. Because

         13  this is City-owned property, it ought to continue to

         14  serve the public in general, so we think the

         15  community board's hours of openness makes a lot of

         16  sense.

         17                 We wanted to make sure that there is

         18  signage posted on the fence, because all too often

         19  privately controlled, or publicly owned -- privately

         20  owned, publicly accessible open space sometimes gets

         21  forgotten about and we don't want that to happen

         22  here. Not that I have any doubt that the community

         23  will certainly be vigilant in monitoring, but you

         24  never know, ten, 15, 20 years down the road.

         25                 And I'm very happy to hear and
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          2  grateful to the Council for its efforts in getting

          3  those hours listed in the LDA, and your efforts in

          4  getting the commitment regarding the signage, thank

          5  you Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito, and I

          6  guess that's it. We just wanted to say that we like

          7  the project, and we think it's important that it

          8  remain a public asset, as it should be. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Borelli.

         11                 I will note at that point about

         12  privately owned but accessible to the public space

         13  has been an issue in my own district and is one I

         14  think many of us are very sensitive to and that we

         15  want to make sure that obligations that are made and

         16  commitments that are made today are not forgotten.

         17  And particularly I have seen it on the East Side of

         18  Manhattan where residential areas which had promised

         19  certain space for public use ultimately get closed

         20  off when a cooperative board says wait a minute, why

         21  are we paying for access to the public, and why are

         22  we paying all of this money and allowing the public

         23  to come on to our property.

         24                 So, I think that ensuring at the

         25  outset, and congratulate, obviously, my colleague
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          2  Mark-Viverito, as well as thank the Borough

          3  President for their commitment to that, because it

          4  is critically important.

          5                 With that, and seeing no other

          6  members of the public wishing to testify on this

          7  item, I'm going to close the hearing on Land Use,

          8  the related Land Use items ULURP 231, 323, Land Use

          9  231, 232, and open the hearing on Land Use 253.

         10                 I should note that we've been joined

         11  by Council Member David Yassky of Brooklyn, and

         12  appropriately so in that Land Use No. 253 is two

         13  properties in his Council district, they are

         14  non-ULURP Number 20075048 HAK. 381 Baltic Street and

         15  381-A Baltic Street, both part of HPD's StoreWorks

         16  Program.

         17                 So, Ms. Clark, I'd like to invite you

         18  and your team to come back up and introduce this

         19  item.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         21  you very much. I'm joined this time by Nigel

         22  Radcliff, who is with HPD's Housing Production Unit.

         23  And I'm pleased to have you here, Nigel.

         24                 As you all know, the HUD 203K program

         25  is something we've been discussing for many of the
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          2  last several months. HPD and the Department of

          3  Housing and Urban Development have undertaken an

          4  initiative in which residential buildings acquired

          5  by HUD through mortgage foreclosures of federally

          6  insured Section 203K loans are sold to private

          7  entities and developed within the parameters of

          8  existing HPD Housing program.

          9                 When foreclosures were about to take

         10  place, the City stepped up to negotiate with HUD to

         11  ensure that this would yield affordable housing,

         12  rather than market rate units.

         13                 It was back in January of 2002, some

         14  five years ago, when a memorandum of understanding,

         15  an MOU, was signed in which HUD committed

         16  significant resources to the rehabilitation of

         17  buildings, and the City committed to seek tax

         18  exemptions for these projects, tax exemptions

         19  through the UDAAP tax exemption program.

         20                 And in this way, HPD and HUD are

         21  transforming what was mostly dilapidated, private

         22  housing, into decent and affordable housing for

         23  existing tenants, new tenants and also future

         24  home-buyers. And as you know, the StoreWorks model

         25  is one of the existing HPD programs that has been
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          2  around for over a decade, and it seeks to have the

          3  owners of buildings that are mixed-use buildings

          4  that are residential and commercial use maintain

          5  their buildings. Both 381-A and 381 Baltic Street

          6  are in the StoreWorks Program, and we have in fact

          7  had a dialogue with Council Member Yassky, an

          8  extensive and very clear dialogue and I believe that

          9  HPD and the Council Member have agreed to disagree

         10  with regard the seeking of a UDAAP tax exemption for

         11  these properties.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Ms. Clark, I

         14  certainly will give Council Member Yassky an

         15  opportunity to speak for himself on that subject.

         16                 If you'd like to now, Councilman?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Sure, whenever

         18  appropriate.

         19                 Well, thank you, yes, I do not agree

         20  that it's in the interest of the City to grant these

         21  types of exemptions. If I can just get some facts

         22  out, because in talking about this with my

         23  colleagues, there are some questions I have that I

         24  want to make sure I do this properly.

         25                 These are two smallish buildings,
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          2  three-story, two-story, three-story buildings,

          3  right?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          5  that's correct. 381 Baltic is a two-family with a

          6  storefront and 381A Baltic is a two-family being

          7  converted to a one-family with a commercial space,

          8  that's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And what will

         10  happen with these properties, what's the future here

         11  for these? What happens from here on in?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: The

         13  developer is known as central development

         14  corporation, an experienced developer who has worked

         15  in this community and worked with HPD extensively.

         16  The gentleman's name happens to be Sam Wu. He closed

         17  on the construction loan financing and was sold the

         18  properties in the project from the federal

         19  government, the Division of Housing and Urban

         20  Development, back in November, November 8 of 2006.

         21  And, so, he will proceed with the renovation of the

         22  buildings, and they will be marketed to home-buyers

         23  and the marketing will occur in the months ahead,

         24  with construction being completed about a year

         25  later. And, of course, as was always the case, with
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          2  a 50 percent community board preference in all of

          3  the HPD programs, so we're going to, of course,

          4  institute that, because there is going to be so many

          5  people from the local Boerum Hill area liable to

          6  respond to the marketing, there is actually a good

          7  chance that 100 percent of the applications will, in

          8  fact, be from the local community.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Just --

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: How are they

         12  sold, exactly? My understanding, but I just want to

         13  make sure I'm correct, that they're sold by lottery,

         14  that a price is set according to the appraised

         15  value, and then they'll be sold by lottery; am I

         16  correct in that?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         18  that's correct. An acquisition price is set and then

         19  the property is sold by an HPD marketing lottery.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And anyone is

         21  eligible to enter the lottery, or are there any

         22  income limits? Is this restricted to, you know,

         23  low-income, moderate income, or anyone can enter

         24  lottery?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: There
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          2  are no income limits in terms of who can apply to be

          3  in this lottery, that is correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And how is the

          5  price set, did you say?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: The

          7  price is set by an agreement with HUD and HPD, and

          8  we take into account the cost, the rising

          9  construction costs, which as you're well aware, have

         10  gone up significantly in the five years since the

         11  MOU was reached between HUD and HPD. So, it's

         12  expensive to do these buildings, to rehabilitate

         13  them. And we're relying, our intention in coming to

         14  the Council for the UDDAP tax exemption is to try to

         15  help enhance the affordability and further offset

         16  the considerable cost in development and

         17  construction in the rehab of these properties.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do we know now

         19  what the price will be when they're auctioned off,

         20  you know, a year from now or we don't know that yet?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: We do

         22  in fact have a price that has been determined, and

         23  for 381 Baltic Street, which is the two-family

         24  house, the price has been set at approximately

         25  $545,000, and it's intended to be -- and then the
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          2  other one is 381A Baltic Street where the price is

          3  $440,000. That's a two-family being converted to a

          4  one-family home.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And are those

          6  the market value of those properties, or do we have

          7  a sense of what the market value is?

          8                 I asked just for anecdotal, but I

          9  asked a realtor I ran into over the weekend who does

         10  a lot of work there, what's market value, her

         11  estimate was somewhere around a million-two,

         12  two-million five. She pointed me to a property a

         13  block away that recently sold for a million-two.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         15  The properties are in fact appraised, but the sales

         16  price is not as the full appraised market value,

         17  because there is the interest of the City initially

         18  in entering into the whole 203K program was to make

         19  investment in properties where the City had already

         20  significantly worked on surrounding blocks

         21  throughout the City. Most of them as you know, as

         22  we've discussed, are located in Harlem, some are in

         23  Central Brooklyn, it's somewhat unusual that this

         24  particular Boerum Hill property in your district is

         25  not the typical kind of 203K project. There are
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          2  about 440 properties that are in the 203K program,

          3  and this one is in an area where the land values

          4  really have risen, so, no, it's not being sold at

          5  its fair market value price.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you know if

          7  my one realtor estimate is anywhere close to

          8  accurate?

          9                 I mean, do you have a guess as to

         10  what the market value of these properties is?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: We

         12  really are not certain, but as a resident of

         13  Brooklyn and from Nigel Radcliff's sense of the 1.2,

         14  1.5 sounds a little high, but, again, I'm just

         15  speaking individually as a resident of Brooklyn.

         16  Yes, they're definitely sold at less than market

         17  because of the nature of the program.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And then, Mr.

         19  Chair, I don't want to prolong this, my question

         20  then is, just why are we giving the tax exemption?

         21  And let me begin and just make sure I understand it.

         22  Somebody will, by lottery, earn or really somebody

         23  by lottery will get the chance to purchase, you

         24  know, one of them, a building for $545,000 that's

         25  more than that, I don't know if it's worth 800, a
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          2  million, whatever, but worth more than that, and

          3  we're voting on today giving that purchaser in

          4  addition an exemption from property taxes; what is

          5  the purpose of that?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: The

          7  203K agreement was reached five years ago by the

          8  City and HUD anticipated that what the City would

          9  bring to the table were the UDAAP tax exemption and

         10  the abatement in terms of the property taxes on the

         11  improvement, which is to say the building, the

         12  rehabilitated building, and the thinking at the

         13  time, obviously time changed, the real estate market

         14  we all know has shifted dramatically in the last

         15  five years, but the idea was that the City would be

         16  contributing the tax abatement in order to enhance

         17  the affordability of the properties. These homes

         18  were looking to see households with two wage

         19  earners. In the case of the two-family being

         20  converted to a one-family, the family that will live

         21  there will likely have two wage earners and they'll

         22  be getting the rental income from the commercial

         23  space, in the other instance where there's a two

         24  family with the store front, one family will own the

         25  property and will be getting residential income as
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          2  well as the commercial income, and that will help to

          3  offset the cost.

          4                 It's thought that those savings would

          5  then be passed through to the owner who would be in

          6  the rental unit and that would help to enhance the

          7  affordability.

          8                 Obviously that was the agreement that

          9  was reached in January of 2002, as we've discussed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, I do get

         11  it. I just thought to be clear about it with my own

         12  head, there is no limit on when there is a lottery,

         13  right. I mean, Goldman Sachs's partner with a $10

         14  million bonus this year, of whom there are some who

         15  live in my Council district, and so would be

         16  eligible for the community preference and so forth,

         17  that person gets the same benefits, right? In other

         18  words, when you say it's designed to enhance

         19  affordability, it's not -- the mechanism doesn't

         20  ensure that it's kind of affordable income target

         21  family that lives here, but simply that the price is

         22  low, and then whoever gets the benefit of that is

         23  determined by lottery.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, I

         25  think you understand the program quite well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

          3                 Do we have a guess -- and this is my

          4  last question, Mr. Chair -- do we have a guess as to

          5  how much the City is giving away here in property

          6  tax revenue?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'm

          8  sorry, Council Member, but we don't have that

          9  figure. I think you and I discussed how we would

         10  have to go to the Department of Finance and work

         11  backwards to figure that out.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, fair

         13  enough. I don't want to belabor this.

         14                 Actually, I think that's suggestive

         15  of the failure here of the City, in that presumably

         16  the claim you're making is that it's worth, the tax

         17  exemption is worth giving in return for whatever it

         18  is we get. Put that aside, but how can you even make

         19  that kind of judgment without knowing what we're

         20  giving away? I mean, I'm going to guess it's a, I

         21  don't know, $20,000 tax bill over 15 years. That's

         22  material. That's real money. And we should at least

         23  have a sense -- let me put it this way: There is no

         24  way if you or anybody at HPD wrote a City check for,

         25  you know, $300,000 to this property, that would look
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          2  pretty foolish, and what we're doing today is really

          3  the same thing. I guess I don't think we should be

          4  so -- we shouldn't be any more cavalier in giving

          5  away tax revenue as we are in giving away actual

          6  dollars.

          7                 But I appreciate your indulgence, Mr.

          8  Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

         10  Council Member.

         11                 Ms. Clark, did you want to say

         12  something? I also have a couple of questions for you

         13  as well.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Go

         15  ahead, you can ask the questions, but Nigel did

         16  point out in Harlem the StoreWorks Program, with the

         17  value of what would be the tax abatement is

         18  approximately $20,000 a year to the ultimate owner

         19  the building, and you're correct it's on the

         20  improvements and for a 20-year period.

         21                 So, in addition to that, I would also

         22  say that the City, when it reached this agreement

         23  five years ago, committed to putting about $130

         24  million of its capital money into assisting with the

         25  renovation of these buildings, all 400 and so many,
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          2  so there was a capital investment made by the City

          3  as well as by HUD.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Fair enough.

          5  So, the 20,000 is -- thank you for that.

          6                 Okay, thank you. That's fine.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Sure.

          9                 Ms. Clark, just one follow-up to

         10  Council Member Yassky. Resale restrictions. How does

         11  it work, if somebody let's say is fortunate enough

         12  to win the lottery and buy the property today for

         13  what you estimated for one of them to be let's say

         14  $544,000 and then in six months time they want to

         15  sell it, do they avail themselves of the tax benefit

         16  still, or do they need to hold it for a period of

         17  time?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: As

         19  you're aware, in the StoreWorks Program of the HPD,

         20  there is no restriction on resale; however, with the

         21  Department of Housing and Urban Development, they do

         22  have a restriction for a period of six years with

         23  these 203K properties, so there is a six-year

         24  restriction that is available and will prevent the

         25  purchaser from what's known as flipping in the --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, it's a

          3  six-year period?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's a

          5  six-year period, correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Other

          7  questions? I guess my one point in all of this, and

          8  I thank Council Member Yassky for his very good

          9  questions, and he is absolutely correct I think to

         10  point out that when the City is negotiating the

         11  terms of these agreements, affordability and

         12  income-based restrictions should be part of

         13  everything that we do as a City.

         14                 You know, I in my own district, of

         15  course, just saw the sale of Stuyvesant Town and

         16  Peter Cooper Village, which will ultimately mean the

         17  loss of 11,232 units which will be luxury housing

         18  over a, you know, a period of time.

         19                 And so I do think that when HPD

         20  considers these agreements down the line and when we

         21  oversee those agreements, we will be doubly vigilant

         22  to make sure that the City is putting the

         23  affordability first and foremost of our agenda.

         24                 That being said, of course, the City

         25  did enter into an arrangement here, and the federal
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          2  government has committed resources and this is a

          3  property that was sold by HUD already.

          4                 But I think that Council Member

          5  Yassky's comments are very well taken and are very

          6  important.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Mr. Chair, I

          8  apologize, one more follow-up?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Because on

         11  that, and believe me, I 100 percent understand the

         12  argument it's something that the City said we were

         13  going to do, told HUD you were going to do so we

         14  kind of want to follow through on it, and that while

         15  these two properties, it may be kind of foolish to

         16  do what we're doing here, there are many, many

         17  others that be treated in the same way, it made

         18  sense. So, you have to accept a little bit of

         19  mismatch. But have we asked HUD, has anybody from

         20  the City gone back to HUD and said, you know, we've

         21  executed this flawlessly, but there are two

         22  properties here that just make no sense, and we

         23  would look kind of silly giving away hundreds of

         24  thousands of dollars of tax revenue for properties

         25  that, you know, in one of the hottest real estate
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          2  markets in the City.

          3                 So, how about if we don't do it for

          4  these two properties? Have we asked HUD that?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That

          6  specific question we have not asked HUD. However, as

          7  we've discussed, the City through HPD has an ongoing

          8  relationship with HUD and we are anticipating coming

          9  to the Council with the asset control area program

         10  that we've been briefing the Land Use staff on, just

         11  very recently this last week, which is another HUD

         12  program that involves small homes.

         13                 So, we have an ongoing relationship

         14  with HUD that we want to preserve. And, so, I think

         15  that's a perfectly fair question, but, no, the

         16  answer is no.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I do think of

         18  that, how it's the point that when we are

         19  considering the future agreements with HUD, there

         20  should at least be some ability for the City to be

         21  able to identify properties as time changes, which

         22  may not be appropriate for those areas and for the

         23  program that we negotiate.

         24                 Council Member Comrie has a question

         25  as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, actually

          3  Councilman Yassky just asked my question.

          4                 Just curious, the final disposition

          5  of this property will still be the same? It will

          6  still be a one-family with a storefront and a

          7  two-family with a storefront?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          9  sir, that's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the owner

         11  won't be able to tear it down and build up a

         12  30-story condo?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the

         16  application, notification of this will go out where,

         17  for the lottery?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Through

         19  HPD's normal procedures it will be widely advertised

         20  and published in newspapers and the availability

         21  will be widely known.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And anyone can

         23  apply as long as you're a City resident. Can you be

         24  a non-City resident and apply?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No, you
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          2  cannot be a non-City resident, and there is a 50

          3  percent community preference, as part of the lottery

          4  process that is strictly supervised by HPD.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But

          6  extensively I could apply, or anyone else in the

          7  City could apply?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          9  anyone in the City may apply for this. But you have

         10  to be a City resident.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And like you

         12  said, this deal was cut in 2002?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Five

         14  years ago this memorandum of understanding was

         15  signed, yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

         20  Council member. One more follow up. The 50 percent

         21  community preference, I'm a little confused as to

         22  how exactly does that work. Does that mean that the

         23  local community will be given preference for one of

         24  the two properties? How does that happen?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.
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          2  This is a cluster. We always approach things with a

          3  cluster. And of course, we're focusing on 381 and

          4  381A Baltic, but it's part of a larger cluster of

          5  properties that the Central Development Corporation

          6  is undertaking as part of the 203K process. So, we

          7  will be marketing based on that full cluster, which

          8  includes parcels that are located in other

          9  Councilmanic districts that have previously been

         10  approved here at the Council in the fall of 2006.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I'm sorry, I

         12  don't understand what that means.

         13                 So, there are very few families that

         14  can avail themselves of these two properties, right?

         15  This is a two-family and a two-family being

         16  converted to a one-family? We're not talking about a

         17  lot of people who are going to be winning this

         18  lottery, right?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No,

         20  there's only going to be two households who will

         21  ultimately be, as you call it, the winner of the

         22  lottery.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. So, my

         24  question then is, what is a 50 percent community

         25  preference? How does that work? I just don't
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          2  understand what that means.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's a

          4  ten building cluster, so a total of five houses will

          5  have to go to community board residents.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I see. So, you

          7  are grouping these two with the other eight

          8  buildings, and you're saying of the total ten, five

          9  will have to go from two people who live in the

         10  community board, and five may, doesn't actually mean

         11  they necessarily will, but they may go outside of

         12  the community board; is that correct?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That is

         14  correct, but they have to be City residents, as

         15  Council Member Comrie was highlighting.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay,

         17  Council Member Yassky.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Can I just

         19  clarify that?

         20                 The other eight that will make up

         21  this group of ten, are they in Community Board 6 as

         22  well?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No,

         24  they are not.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. So,
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          2  there will be two properties in Community Board 6,

          3  Brooklyn, and let's say eight properties in

          4  Community Board 10, Manhattan. I'm just making that

          5  up.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: They're

          7  all in Brooklyn, Council Member Yassky.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. So, ten

          9  properties, two in Community Board 6 in Brooklyn,

         10  two in Community Board 1, two in Community Board 17,

         11  just making that up, five of them have to go to kind

         12  of their respective community board, but that may or

         13  may not include these ten, and these two, so it

         14  could be these two go to people who live in Queens.

         15  Many people who live in Queens are really first-rate

         16  people. But these two could go to anybody, as long

         17  as five of that ten go to somebody in their

         18  respective community board?

         19                 I'm not sure I actually care how it

         20  works, I'm just curious.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Well,

         22  it's a worthwhile question. There are three separate

         23  community districts that are involved in these

         24  buildings, Community Board 6, Community Board 16,

         25  and Community Board 8, all in Brooklyn, and a total
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          2  of five of the ten, as said previously, will have to

          3  go to their community board.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Interesting.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, seeing

          7  no further questions or members of the public

          8  wishing to testify on Land Use 253, non-ULURP

          9  20075048 HAK, I will close the hearing on that item.

         10  And we have one more item today, it is Land Use 360.

         11  It is non-ULURP No. 20075166 HAQ, a number of

         12  properties in the Borough of Queens, in the District

         13  of Council Member Comrie, and as part of the

         14  Partnership Program of HPD and Ms. Clark, I invite

         15  you to go and introduce Land Use 360.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, LU

         17  360 is known as Guy Brewer North A, and it consists

         18  of the proposed disposition of ten City-owned vacant

         19  lots for development under HPD's partnership

         20  program. The proposed developer, MCR Restoration

         21  Corporation has plans to construct ten two-family

         22  homes for a total of 20 affordable units for sale to

         23  owner-occupants. We have briefed Council Member

         24  Comrie and he has indicated his support of this

         25  project.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Ms. Clark,

          3  thank you. You said this is ten vacant lots being

          4  developed into ten two-family homes you said; is

          5  that correct?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That is

          7  correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Through NCR

          9  Restoration?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That is

         11  the name of the developer. The name of the program

         12  through which this development is supposed to take

         13  place is HPD's Partnership Program.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: What are the

         15  criteria of the Partnership Program?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'm

         17  going to introduce Terry Arroyo, who is the Land Use

         18  Assistant here at HPD and have her give the answer

         19  to that question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Ms. Arroyo,

         21  welcome.

         22                 MS. ARROYO: Thank you. Thank you,

         23  Council Member.

         24                 The Partnership Program was created

         25  basically to -- it's a subsidized program in order
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          2  to create affordable housing, home ownership

          3  opportunity. Specifically in the Partnership

          4  Program, the targeted income group of the potential

          5  buyers must fall within 32,000 to 75,000 dollars.

          6  The City subsidizes --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: For a family

          8  of --

          9                 MS. ARROYO: Of four.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Of four, okay.

         11                 MS. ARROYO: And the City provides

         12  like $15,000 per unit as a subsidy to bring down the

         13  sale price and to make it affordable.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, so that

         15  is how the program is defined, $15,000. And these

         16  are sales you said? So, these are  00.

         17                 MS. ARROYO: Owner occupancy.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Owner occupied

         19  sale, the City subsidized $15,000 per unit.

         20                 MS. ARROYO: Per unit.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Is the $15,000

         22  a dollar amount which is determined by virtue of

         23  where the property is? Or is that Citywide?

         24                 MS. ARROYO: It's programmatic,

         25  Citywide.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Got it. And

          3  for 32 to 75,000 dollars for a family of four.

          4                 MS. ARROYO: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Council Member

          6  Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Mr. Chair, the

          8  Partnership Program is a program that my community

          9  is long familiar with. It actually started, the

         10  Partnership Program actually started under the Koch

         11  Administration. I'm afraid to say that I was only

         12  two years old when that started, but I was aware of

         13  it, and it started actually along Guy R. Brewer

         14  Boulevard. So, some of these properties are still --

         15  that's one of the last pieces of urban renewal,

         16  actually the last area of urban renewal in my

         17  district. These are some areas that have been long

         18  vacant and the community was highly anticipatory and

         19  expectant of these properties to be developed.

         20                 I just wanted to congratulate HPD on

         21  continuing to work to make sure that we have quality

         22  contractors that are doing the building. I just

         23  wanted to make sure that NCR was a contractor that

         24  you've had a relationship with and has done other

         25  projects that you're happy with?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          3  sir. We are very pleased with his work.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And, you know,

          5  the outreach for this program has been pretty

          6  exceptional. They do outreach to the local churches,

          7  the community boards and the community in general. I

          8  now look forward to this project being in the

          9  ground, so I urge the Committee to vote aye.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         11  you, Council Member Comrie.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you. And

         13  seeing no members of the public wishing to testify

         14  on Land Use 360, I will close the hearing on that

         15  item that is non-ULURP 20075166 HAQ. And that is the

         16  last item that will be heard on today's agenda, so I

         17  will couple together all the items on which we have

         18  had a hearing today for the purposes of voting and

         19  lay over the rest on today's calendar at the

         20  requests of the specific members in the districts

         21  those properties sit, and on the items heard today,

         22  the Chair recommends an aye vote on all.

         23                 I will ask the Counsel to call the

         24  roll.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair
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          2  Garodnick.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Baez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Comrie.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         11  three in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         12  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         13  approved and referred to the Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         15  much, and thanks to everybody for being here. This

         16  Subcommittee meeting is adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 1:58 p.m.)
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